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Hearing Date: January 25, 2007
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Minutes:

Chairman Cook opened the hearing on SB 2264 relating to sale of a mobile home park. All
members (5) were present.

Senator Taylor, District 7 brought SB 2264 before the committee. It is a bill regarding notice
and right of first refusal for mobile lot home owners in a mobile home park. A couple things
after the bill was written are in the amendments that he passed out. (See attachment #1)
What the bill would do is if there is an agreement to sell a mobile home park, the seller would
notify the residents in writing if the purchasers intend to close the mobile home park or convert
to another use with in one year of the agreement. They would need ninety day written notice
of that intent. They have to provide information on the cash price, terms and conditions. It
would be sent by first class mail. If fifty one percent of the owners in that mobile home or an
organization that has the permission to represent them would like to execute an agreement to
purchase the park at the cash price that has been agreed upon, they would have a right to do
that. Itis a right of first refusal law and is not that uncommon in some other states. If the
owners meet the offer which is not intended to lose the seller of the mobile home park any
money.

Senator Taylor continued to explain the bill.

Chairman Cook asked if there have been problems out there,
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Senator Taylor answered not within his own district but there is a potential for it.

Chairman Cook asked if the existing seller decided to close the park and use the land for
some other purpose, what rights do the tenants have in that situation?

Senator Taylor answered under current law they would just have to provide notice that it is to
be rezoned. If he is doing it himself | don’t know if there would be any protection.
Representative Onstad, District 4, Parshal, ND testified in support of SB 2264. This bill allows
the option for the current residents to take ownership of the facility that everybody is a part of
and create that association or cooperative. If they form their own association and take pride in
what they are doing it would help improve the mobile parks.

Bill Patrie, Director of Cooperative Business Strategies, Northcountry Cooperative
Deveiopment Fund testified in support of SB 2264. (See attachment #2)

Chairman Cook asked if they have financed any mobile home parks in ND.

Bill Patrie said they had not.

Jeff Avery, lives in a Mobile Home as a tenant, appeared in support of a Do Pass. It will
create stability for the residence of a mobile home park and gives them the option to retain
their residency in the mobile home park home.

Testimony in opposition of SB 2264.

Kent French, Leichty Homes, spoke in opposition to SB 2264. The problem he has with the
bill is that it takes the land owners rights away. It makes it more difficult to sell property. The
property that we worked for, took the risk on as owners. It may have an effect on future
manufacturing communities that may be built because if in fact there is stipulations, the banker
is going to take a second look at it.

No neutral testimony.

Chairman Cook closed the hearing on SB 2264.
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Chairman Cook called the Senate Political Subdivisions back to order. All members (5)
present.

Chairman Cook said SB 2264 is the mobile home park bill. What are your thoughts?
Senator Anderson said in theory it is a good idea, but is so absolute. It says they must
accept the offer, if fifty one percent forms a coop.

Chairman Cook asked if he would be open if we eliminated all the new language that is in
subsection 1 and subsection 2 and go down into subsection 3 where there is a notification
requirement of a purposed rezoning and also add in there a sentence of same notification
requirement in case of a potential sale of the property.

Senator Warner said he would be comfortable with this.

Senator Hacker | will reiterate that you are seeing more and more partnerships created. It is
very hazy on what was the price. The owner going into a partnership with a developer which is
only going to happen maybe fifty percent of the time and | don't see how you would ever
convey the sale price.

Chairman Cook asked Chris Rausch our Intern, to drop the sentence that can be added to

subsection 3 which will go back to be subsection 1 then and somehow just place in there a
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sentence that there needs to be one hundred eighty days notice in case of a owner selling a
park.

Chairman Cook closed the committee work and the committee will look at the amendment

tomorrow.
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Minutes:

Chairman Cook called the committee to order. All members (5) present.

g asked them to go to SB 2264. This is the mobile home bill. This is a prevention of
something that might happen but we really have not had a problem. The way | understand it, it
will not solve the problem if we did have one. It will probably create a few other problems. |
suggest that we look at these amendments. Chris wrote them up and what it does, is require
that the owner of a mobile home park to notify the attendants of a pending sale of the park.
Chris put them right where | told him to but maybe we need to change the amendments and
insert them at the very end of subsection 3.

Senator Hacker made a motion to move the amendments when they area changed.
Senator Olafson seconded the motion.

Voice Vote; 5 Yes O No

Senator Olafson moved Do Pass as Amended.

Senator Hacker seconded the motion.

Vote: 5 Yes 0 No 0 Absent

Carrier: Senator Olafson
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. Proposed amendments to SB 2264

Page 1, Line 7, strike “purchase” and insert “sell”, strike “purchaser” and replace with
“seller”

Line 8, strike “the park owner” and insert “residents”
Line 11, strike “forty-five™ and insert “ninety”
Line 16, strike “forty-five” and insert “ninety”

Page 2, Line 9, strike “forty-five” and insert “ninety”
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PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SENATE BILL 2264
Page 1, remove lines 7 through 24.
Page 2, remove lines 1 through 15.

Page 2, line 16, remove "3."; remove "subsections 1 and 2 do not apply, if"

Page 2, line 23, after the period, insert "Furthermore, the owner of a mobile home park

shall notify all tenants in the park in writing of a pending sale at least one hundred eighty
days before such sale is to be completed."
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2264

-Page 1, remove lines 7 through 24

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 15

Page 2, line 16, remove "3." and remove “subsections 1 and 2 do not apply, if"

Page 2, line 25, after the period insert "The owner of a mobile home park shall notify each
tenant in the park in writing of a pending sale at least one hundred eighty days befors

the sale is to be completed.”

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 70618.0101
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If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-19-1398
January 29, 2007 9:46 a.m. Carrler: Olafson
Insert LC: 70618.0101  Title: .0200

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2264: Political Subdivisions Committee (Sen. Cook, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2264 was placed on the Sixth
order on the calendar.
Page 1, remove lines 7 through 24
Page 2, remove lines 1 through 15

Page 2, line 16, remove "3." and remove "subsections 1 and 2 do not apply, if"

Page 2, line 25, after the period insert "The owner of a mobile home park shall notify each

tenant in the park in writing of a pending sale at least one hundred eighty days before
the sale is to be completed.”

Renumber accordingly

{2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 SR-16-1398
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Minutes:

Chairman Herbel opened the hearing on SB 2264.

Senator Taylor: The bill is engrossed and has to do with sale of a mobile home park. We
only added the one line you see on the bottom. That lets the tenants be given notice of 180
days before the sale. Gives the tenants a chance to make an offer of their own. There are 12
other states that have right of first refusal because home ownership is important in America
and important in North Dakota and these trailer homes are homes.

Rep. Lawrence Klemin: What is the reason for the changes for the notice?

Senator Taylor: This would be a sale of the mobile home park.

Rep.Dwight Wrangham: If there is current contracts or lease agreements with the mobile
home owners of the park. Do those contain language that specify certain notice if there is
going to be a change in the land or something like that?

Senator Taylor: | am not in contract law, but | assume you can write anything you want to
between the two parties and that could be a part of it. There maybe contracts of lease
arrangements out there that can delineate some of that.

Rep. Pat Hatlestad: Does this apply only if they are going to rezone the park. If it is going to

remain a mobile home park would this be required?
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Senator Taylor: The new language is just that last sentence on the bottom. The new

language is for sale even if it stays a mobile home park.

Rep. Kari Conrad: Ali the trailer courts in Minot are owned by someone out of state. Is this a

common thing?

Senator Taylor: | do not know where the ownership lies. That is interesting in your district

that they have that amount of out of state ownership.

Rep. Kari Conrad: They had allot of problems because of out of state ownership.

Chairman Herbel What implications would this have; the UND owned a trailer court right

close to the Inglestad Arena and when they decided to build that area they used park for a

parking lot and it may have complicated things for them to get the construction going to get
. those people out of the way, so to speak. to start that construction. Do you know if this

cancels that state owned parks?

Senator Taylor: In that instance that would have been a change of use. Mobile home Park to

a parking lot and arena. The existing language would cover that. There is nothing tying any

ones hands. It is just a curtsey of notice. It gives them 180 days to find a new place to park

their trailer.

Rep. Onstad: | stand here in support of SB 2264, In my district of Parshali housing is short

and mobile home parks are good housing. Pride in ownership of where you are at helps

people take better care of their mobile homes and therefore they look nice in the town.

Discussed working together and forming an association for a mobile home park.

Rep. Donald Dietrich: Are you aware of any mobile home parks where they have attempted

to form an association and possibly to purchase the mobile home park?

. Rep. Onstad: Not in the state. | believe in Minnesota they are doing this.
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Rep. Lawrence Klemin: If a prospective purchaser makes an offer and it is accepted by the
owner than what can the tenants do about it when it only remains to close?
Rep. Onstad: No it does not. The original language gave them first right of refusal; now it is
taken out. At this point it is only notification to them that a sale is pending. If they want to work
with the owner to do this there is nothing binding.
Rep. Lawrence Klemin At that point in time it is too late because the owner has already
entered into a contract to sell it to someone else and can’t change it mind without breaching
the contract.
Rep. Onstad: That is correct. They look at the 180 days is that potential sale and they are
working on that sale. Most of your cases if they are locking to redevelop that sale they start
. that negotiation, | am looking to move this property for sale, it just gives back to those current
tenants some ability to have notice.
Bill Patrie:North County Coop Development Fund: It is a iender to small cooperatives in the
upper Midwest. One of the cooperatives we lend to is a mobile home park cooperate. We are
extremely interested in helping tenants who live in a park organize and buy the property. This
bifl helps us to that by simply letting us know what properties might in play. There is nothing
that keeps and existing mobile home park owner from selling to the tenants now. If that park is
going to be for sale and we would like to know that and this notice helps in that process.
Rep. Lee Kaldor: The term in this bill that gives me a problem is the term pending sale. | am
wondering if there is another way to stipulate when that notice should occur. Should it occur
when the owner offers the property for sale. When | think about pending sale, | am thinking

about a willing buyer and seller. If the day the owner decides | am advertising this for sale or

. offering it; maybe even in a closed market, at least then they might have a chance.
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Bill Patrie: In very good point. The first intent of the right of first refusal was for a change of
use. So there was no right of first refusal if the trailer home park was being transferred to
another owner who would maintain it as a trailer home park. | do not know from a legal
definition what pending means. The intent here is to get the two parties here together to
determine whether there is an interest by the tenants to buy the park.

Rep. Louis Pinkerton Are there laws in other states that are more applicable?

Bill Patrie;: There are 12 states that have some combination of either right of first refusal or
prior notice. Minnesota has the right of first refusal law. Qur organization gets called in when
there is an interest to form an association and buying it. The Senate committee that amended
this wanted to have the tenants have some right to buy this park. First of all tenants don’t
know how to get organized and how to go about buying it.

Rep. Nancy Johnson: First do tenants know they can do this?

Bill Patrie: No there is not allot of information out there and we would like to get this
information out to them. Most folks that live in a mobile home park do not ever think of owning
it themselves.

Rep. Lawrence Klemin This pending sale, it does not say private sale. The notice under
Mortgage Foreclosure Law is 180 days now. Would this apply to a mortgage foreclosure sale
and have the affect of lengthening that statuary law?

Bill Patrie: | do not know.

Rep. Louis Pinkerton Did they use one of the other states bill to go by?

Sen. Taylor: Used Minnesota as a guide with a 45 day notice with right of first refusal.
Opposition: None

Hearing closed.
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Chairman Herbel reopened the hearing for discussion. What is the definition of pending? Do
we need to do an amendment that would be satisfactory with everyone here?

Rep. Klemin: | have got a couple problems with this. The way the bill is right now it doesn't
serve any particular purpose. | can see situations where the 180 day notice would interfere
with the sale and would unreasonable extend the sale.

Rep. Chris Griffin: | would be willing to work on an amendment to elevate some of the
concerns. | do think it is important if you are living in the trailer park al! of a sudden it is
suddenly going to be sold. If it is a sheriff's sale they do publish it in the paper, but how many
people are looking through the legal notices.

Chairman Herbel: Keep in mind it came out of the Senate this way and whatever we come up
with is going to have to be something that we can work with them as well. They already
amended the original bill down to this. | am not sure we are going to get any where with this
bill?

Rep. Donald Dietrich: | do not know of any mobile home parks, but | do know of
manufactured horne parks.

Rep. Kari Conrad: | want to hold the bill and look at it.

Hearing closed.
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Minutes:

Chairman Herbel reopened the hearing on SB 2264. .

Rep. Kari Conrad: | have an amendment being prepared and was suppose to be done by
9AM. They said we would have them for sure by tomorrow morning. It would take about 20
minutes to go through it and | can not give it to you off the top of my head.

Chairman Herbel: OK we will hold this one.

Hearing closed.
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Minutes:

Chairman Herbel reopened the hearing on SB 2264. That is the one where the trailer park
sale may take place and there are regulations that go with it.

Rep. Kari Conrad: Handed out the proposed amendment and explained it. Caused a lot of
discussion in our area because the trailer court owners are from out of state. | would like to
have the option of notifying the mobile home park owners of a potential sale.

Made a Motion to Move the amendment; Seconded By Rep. Chris Griffin

Discussion:

Rep. Kari Conrad: All our entities are owned by people out of state. If you are going to sell
them just notify the tenants that you are going to sell them before you hire and agent even and
then go on with business. That gives people who might be interested a chance to put in an
offer or indicate an interest. At least they would have to notify them.

Rep. Lawrence Klemin: What would prevent those people from contacting the owners now
and saying in the event you want to sell this we would like to have the opportunity to discuss
the opportunity of buying it?

Rep. Kari Conrad: What | found when working with these folks there is very poor

communications with the park owners so at least they need to inform them.




Page 2

House Political Subdivisions Committee
Bill No. SB 2264

Hearing Date: March 8, 2007

Rep. Lawrence Klemin: What is the affect for failure to give this notice?

Rep. Kari Conrad: None

Chairman Herbel: What form of notice does this have to be?

Rep. Kari Conrad: Just a notice.

Rep. Lawrence Klemin: Does it have to be formal through a lawyer?

Rep. Kari Conrad: No. it is simply to say that tell your tenant before you start to sell, that is all

it says and there is no penalty. This is just a courtesy we expect this kind of relationship.

Chairman Herbel: The amendment has been moved and seconded; do we have further

discussion?

Voice vote carried.

. Chairman Herbel: We now have the amended biil.
Rep. Kim Koppelman: It looks like it is requiring the owner of these facilities to give written
notice before hiring a person to sell it. This would be that they would have to notify before they
decide to sell.
Rep. Kari Conrad: Trailer courts aren't what they use to be when | was growing up. People
have large investments in these homes there and they are not getting the communications
often times when they are going to be sold.
Rep. Donald Dietrich: Someone intends to sell the property and you would have to let the
whole world know that you plan to sell it. Once you get that word out everyone in that mobile
home the word is to the public | am seliing it. They want to keep their sale confidential, but
now you say they have to tell everyone. | think that could have an impact possible on the sale
of their property; good bad or indifferent.

. Do Not Pass As Amended Motion Made By Rep. Lawrence Klemin Seconded By Rep.

Donald Dietrich
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Discussion:

Rep. Lawrence Klemin: | do not think this adds any thing more than another hoop that some
body has to go through if they want to sell their property. There is nothing that prevents the
residence of the mobile home park now from making contact with the owner and saying if you
want to sell it we would like to be considered. There is nothing in here that says there is any
penalty if the notice is not given. There is no form of notice required or mortgage foreclosure; |
don’t think this bill does anything but imposes a paperwork requirement on the owners of this
kind of property so | guess | think it should fail.

Rep. Kari Conrad: | think it is a respect for those people in these situations and they deserve
it.

Rep. Louis Pinkerton: People in these courts put of fences and garages and what to them
are fairly major improvement and then three months later the courts have sold their lots and
their investments are lost. | think they are looking for some sense of notification or intent that
there may be a change in ownership. | agree with all the statements.

Chairman Herbel: Unfortunately we don't have any teeth in it if they don't do it.

Vote: 7 Yes 6 No 1 Absent Carrier: Rep.Dwight Wrangham

Hearing closed.
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Rep. Gil Herbel-Chairman Rep. Kari Conrad
Rep. Dwight Wrangham-V. Chair Rep. Chris Griffin
Rep. Donald Dietrich Rep. Lee Kaldor
Rep. Patrick Hatlestad Rep. Louis Pinkerton
Rep. Nancy Johnson Rep. Steve Zaiser
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Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Rep. Gil Herbel-Chairman X Rep. Kari Conrad X
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Rep. Patrick Hatlestad X Rep. Louis Pinkerton X
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Rep. Kim Koppelman X
Rep. William Kretschmar X
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Total (Yes) 7 No 6
Absent 1
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-45-4799
March 9, 2007 7:41 a.m. Carrier: Wrangham
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REPQORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2264, as engrossed: Political Subdivisions Committee {(Rep. Herbel, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO NOT PASS (7 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed
SB 2264 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 15, replace "a pending sale at least one hundred eighty days before the sale" with
“the intent to selt the mobile home park before the earlier of negotiating_an offer to sell,
advertising for sale, or hiring an agent to sell the mobile home park"

Page 1, ling 16, remove "is to be completed”

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-45-4799
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Testimony of Bill Patrie
Director of Cooperative Business Strategies
Northcountry Cooperative Development Fund

In Support of Senate Bill 2264
Right of First Refusal for Residents in a Mobile Home Park

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Bill Patrie and [ am the
director of cooperative business strategies for Northcountry Cooperative Development
Fund. Northcountry is a cooperative lender with the main office located in Minneapolis.
My office is in Mandan. In addition to copies of this testimony, | am providing you with
the 2005 annual report of Northcountry. On the third panel of that annual report you will
see a brief story about Paul Revere Manufactured Home Park Cooperative in Lexington
Minnesota that our organization helped finance.

This bill, Senate Bill 2264, is important to our organization because it allows residents in
a mobile home park notice that the owner intends to sell the park and that the future
buyer will convert the land to another use. It then extends the right to the residents to
meet that offer and therefore stay in the park. In Minnesota when that occasion occurs
residents of mobile home parks know they can call our organization and we will provide
technical assistance to them in analyzing whether or not it is feasible or desirable to
organize a cooperative and purchase the park.

In the event that residents do wish to purchase the park and can arrange financing, our
organization is paid at closing out of the loan proceeds. If the new cooperative borrows
funds from Northcountry, they become a member of our cooperative. Northcountry
currently has about 164 member borrowers. We can also provide this assistance to them
if they borrow from another lender. They do not need to be a borrower to receive
technical assistance.

The reason this first right of refusal is so important is it gives residents and Northcountry
advance notice so if they wish to they can begin to organize and arrange financing. You
will see from this bill draft that current law already provides 180 day notice of a proposed
zoning change and a 5 day posted notice of zoning public input meetings. These are
important information notices and the right to be heard is critically important since in
may require the mobile home owner to make arrangements to move their home to a new
location. This can sometimes be expensive and difficult. This bill provide an important
new right and that 1s to meet the offer of the proposed new purchaser and therefore not
only allow residents to stay in the park but to also own and govern the park.

The situation this bill addresses is not a commen occurrence. Mobile Home Parks change
hands and continue in use as a mobile home park on a somewhat common basis. This bill
addresses only those change in use situations that will require the residents to find a new
location.
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It is also a rare occurrence in that not every park will have residents who want to
undertake the burden of arranging financing and the responsibilities of park ownership
and governance. This bill just provides the opportunity for those few cases.

As you will see in Northcountry’s annual report, when residents buy the park, they have a
significant pride of ownership. The cooperatively owned park residents | have talked
with say that existing rule enforcement is usually increased, new park residents are more
carefully screened for compatibility and the infrastructure of the park such as utilities,
common parking, safety shelters, and the long term vision of the park is given much
greater attention,

Under current law there is nothing to keep an existing park owner from selling to the
residents. The willing buyer willing seller relationship is the best situation for our
organization to be involved in and we preferred to get involved under those
circumstances. However, with real estate increasing in value, mobile home park owners
may receive unsolicited offers for an intended change of use that may coincide with
retirement plans. In those cases, notifying the residents and giving them a chance to meet
that offer is a courtesy to the folks who have been paying lot rent, in some cases for many
years.

There are others who may wish to testify on this bill and [ will be glad to answer
questions the committee may have of me following their comments. Thank you for this
opportunity. I support this bill and urge a due pass recommendation.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S LETTER
Bridging the Gap

One of the most special things about cooperatives is the way they can form a
natural bridge between sometimes disparate members of a community. Instead of
concentrating on what divides us, cooperatives are a positive and proactive way o
unite around—according to the International Cooperative Alliance definition—
osur common “needs and aspirations.” Helping people with their aspirations is
particularly important: like the old song about “bread and roses,” it. reminds us that
our job is not just o meet basic needs, but to provide opportunities for us all to

fulfill our potential as human beings.

When you spend your working life in community development, you quickly find
that life is full of gaps—in financing, in knowledge, in infrastructure, in service.
Cooperatives are a way that we can all be bridge builders together, using the
resources, tools and ingenuity we possess to get from where we are, to where we

want to be.

This year, we were proud to be ones who helped “bridge the gap” and make
meaningful connections for our members in any number of ways—linking
depositors 1o projects, leveraging outside capital and resources, and [illing the gap
in financing needed to get the deal done. As we reflect on our own journeys and
bridge-crossings in 2005, we are happy to report strong financial performance that
allows us to meet community needs. We could not build these bridges to success
without significant support, and we'd like to take the opportunity to thank you,

our supporiers, for your rofe in helping us 10 meet our aspirations.

Margaret Lund

Executive Director
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NCDF Staff (from left to right): Amanda Keith, Leah Dunn,
Kevin Walker, Margaret Lund, Jerad Rassmussen,

Beth Bidinger, Warren Kramer, Jean Trebus, Jennifer
Fierke, Kim Rice, Kerstin Larson; not pictured: Tim Nelson.

About the Fund, Foundation and Credit Union |

The Northcountry Cooperative Development
Fund (NCDF) is a cooperatively-organized
financial intermediary and a Community
Development Financial Institution providing
loans and other services to a broad range of
growing and developing cooperatives.

The Northcountry Cooperative Foundation (NCF)
is a 501(c)(3) educational and technical assis-
tance organization and developer of affordable
housing—assisting low-income, low-wealth, and
other underserved communities to develop
community-owned and democratically-governed
enterprises through training, research, educa-
tion, development assistance, and specially
designed research projects.

The Northcountry Cooperative Federal Credit
Union (NCFCU) is a federally chartered commu-
nity development credit union providing loans
and investment opportunities. All deposits and
loans directly support vibrant cooperative
communities.

ABOUT THE ARTIST

Since 1979, Ricardo Levins Morales has been working through
the Northland Poster Collective to create art intertwined with
community action and awareness. His art exhibits a deep con-
nection to the community he lives and works in, and is dis-
played in union halls and schools, homes and crisis centers,
workplaces and newsletters, T-shirts and leaflets.

“Most of the work that we do here at Northland really is based
on relationships, movements, and communities—it’s not just us
doing commercial art for social justice groups,” says Morales of
the Northland Poster Collective. “It comes from the experience
of working on the ground, understanding what the needs and

the issues of organizers are, and developing art in relationship to

active movements.”

PHOTOGRAPH BY JENNIFER FIERKE

Ricardo Levins Morales at the Northland Poster
Collective.

Done initially as a tribute to an organizer, the piece featured on the 2005 annual report, Cycle

of Solidarity, illustrates community and cooperation. As Morales says, “This image illustrates
that solidarity, like something you plant in the ground, comes back to feed you. It’s not simply
a matter of being patronizing, of helping other people, it’s ‘l help you, which helps me, which
helps you, which helps me’—a cycle that comes around: ‘The planting of the seed, that grows
into the tree, that bears the fruit, that comes back to the people that planted the seed.’”

Northland Poster Collective is a long-time member and former borrower of Northcountry

Cooperative Development Fund.




," 2005: Investing in Cooperation...

NORTHCOUNTRY COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT FUND (NCDF)

Loan and Investment Highlights

* Provided close to $4 million in financing to
consumer, worker and housing cooperatives
in three states

* Directed 78% of loan dollars to economic-
ally underserved and low-income areas/
individuals

* Financed the creation, preservation and
maintenance of 121 units of owner-
occupied cooperative housing

* Increased assets by 15%

* Maintained an historical loan loss rate well
below 1% of dollars disbursed

* Welcomed eight new cooperative members
for a total of 108 members in 12 states

Here are some examples of cooperative
businesses that have benefited from NCDF
this year:

Bridging the Gap Between
Wisconsinites and Organics:
Just Local Food

Whole organic foods are one of the hottest
trends in the U.S. marketplace. For over ten
years, organic food sales have grown double
digits in total grocery sales. That said, the local
food distribution market is still developing—
Just Local Food, with the help of a $25,000

loan from Northcountry Cooperative
Development Fund for working capital, is tap-
ping into that market by providing a direct
link from small farmers to families, In early
2004, the workers’ co-op started delivering to
20 households out of founders’ cars, and has
since grown to supply over 150 customers in
Wisconsin’s Chippewa Valley with produce
from 23 local and fair trade farmers.

Just Local delivers fresh milk, eggs, honey, and
more to neighborhoods via a hub system—
they drive the produce to a neighborhood by
truck, and then deliver it to homes by bike.
The system is popular with environmentally
and community-conscious residents: Just
Local Foodss biodiesel truck has been modified
10 run on waste-grease from local restaurants,
and bicycle delivery is a visible, practical way
to promote energy conservation.

On November 5, 2005, Just Local opened a
warehouse/grocery at 104 Gibson Street in
downtown Eau Claire, Wisconsin, offering
most delivery products—in addition to many
new products—to a wider array of customers
year-round.

WLESS. ORIGINALLY
URAL DEVELOPMENT,

H BY GREG LA
IN USDA R

PHOTOGRAP!
PUBLISHED
SEPT-OCT 2005,

Jan Rasikas, General Manager at Viroqua
Food Co-op (right), with her daughter and
granddaughter,

Viroqua Food Cooperative

The Viroqua Food Co-op is a vital center of
community activity, boasting 1,000 members
in a farming community of 4,300. A major
2005 expansion and store relocation to the
central business district cemented this role.
When some expected bank financing fell
through, NCDF was able 1o fil] the gap with
some creative, last-minute funding. The new
store, located at 609 North Main Street,
Viroqua, Wisconsin, opened in June, and
sales are running ahead of projections.




NCDF Audited Financial Statements

Years ending December 31, 2005 and 2004

$6 million

$3 million

} BALANCE SHEET INCOME STATEMENT
Assets 2005 2004 Revenues 2005 2004
Current Assets Interest $537,351 $461,568
Cash $1,428,706 $2,108,833 Loan Fees $44,992 $57,040
I’. Notes Receivable $9,305,854 $6,927,667 — Management Fees $438,454 $197,921
Other Receivables $187,289 $445,973 Grant Revenue $415,344 $409,745
! Prepaid Income Project Reimbursement
- Taxes/Expenses $12,066 $7,523 Income $264,204 $ —
—  TOTAL CURRENT Development Fees/ 4
ASSETS $10,933,915 $9,489,996 Other Income $8,101 $95,719
Other Assets $42,400 $32,512 Total Revenues $1,708,446  $1,221,993
Fixed Assets $27,824 $40,863 )
TOTAL OTHER/ Interest Expense $269,699 $238,495
FIXED ASSETS $70,224 $73,375 GROSS PROFIT $1,438,747 $983,498
TOTAL ASSETS $11,004,139 $9,563,371
Liabilities Expenses
Notes Payable $10,130,472  $8,712,122 Administration $213,579 $230,677
Deferred Revenue $ — $ — Labor $722,871 $710,840
. Other Liabilities $10,983 $24,835 Occupancy $67,973 $60,777
JOTAL LIABILITIES $10,141,455  $8,736,957 Project Expenses $373,051 $20,083
Donations $ — $33,714
Provision for Bad Debt ~ $47,223 $25,700
Stockholders Equity
Common Stock $139,530 $129.420 TOTAL EXPENSES  $1,424,697 $1,081,791
Non-Voting Stock $74,000 $74,000 Income (Loss)
Equity Grants $665333  $665,333 Before Taxes $14,050  ($98,405)
Retained Eamings Income Tax Benefit $12,100 $7,600
(Deficits) ($16,189) ($42,339)
NET INCOME $26,150 $(90,805)
TOTAL EQUITY $862,674 $826,414
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND EQUITY $11,004,129 $9,563,371
Asset Growth for NCDF and NCFCU
$15 million —
$12 million
$9 million
[ NCFCU
B NCDF
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...Impacting Our Communities

NORTHCOUNTRY COOPERATIVE FOUNDATION (NCF)

Highlights

* Created-the second manufactured home park coopera-
tive in the state of Minnesota, leveraging substantial
support for the expansion of this program

* Provided research and specialized technical assistance to
a wide range of growing and developing cooperatives,
particularly those serving smaller rural communities

* Posted healthy financial performance, with significant
contributions to net assets

Following are some in-depth examples of how commu-
nities have benefited from NCF support in 2005:

Paul Revere Cooperative:

How Do We Get There from Here?

On October 3, 2005, the Paul Revere Cooperative took
ownership of the Paul Revere Community—an almost
16-acre property that includes private streets and a well—
to become the second cooperatively-owned manufactured
home park in the state.

The 85 families of the Paul Revere Manufactured Home
Parks in Lexington, Minnesota, had been stuck in the
same tenuous spot as residents of many manufactured
home parks—renting the land underneath their home,
unable to afford the high cost of hauling their home from
park to park, and facing regular rent increases, and sub-
par—or even dangerous—infrastructure that reflects years
of deferred maintenance. Worst of all, they faced the pos-
sibility of being forced to abandon their homes if a park is
closed or sold for redevelopment.

In addition to arranging for direct financing from NCDE
NCF also assisted the brand-new Cooperative with loan
packaging, site control negotiations, budgeting, infrastruc-
ture assessments, policy development, and self-gover-
nance. Kevin Walker, project manager for the develop-

Members of the Paul Revere Co-op in front of their
new sign.

ment of Paul Revere, notes that “cooperative homeowner-
ship has the potential to transform manufactured home
communities. Decisions about investing in the park,
changes in monthly fees, or park closure are no longer
made by an absentee park owner; these choices lie with
resident-owners living with the impacts of their decisions
every day.”

Just days after the Cooperative purchased their communi-
ty, resident-owners invested in a new park sign and redec-
orated the community room/storm shelter. These minor
improvements are only the initial bubblings of a well-
spring of future community investment—the cooperative
has set aside $315,000 from the closing for the first phase
of a long-term capital improvement schedule, in which
the Cooperative expects to invest another $1.2 million in
a new, code-compliant water system, street re-pavement,
and new play equipment to reestablish Paul Revere's “tot
lot” for small children.

Kids pose with gourds of their labor at Philadelphia
Community Farm.

Philadelphia Community Farm

One of the early leaders of the commiunity supported
agriculture (CSA) movement, the Philadelphia
Community Farm, located in Osceola, Wisconsin, is a
project that brings farmers and non-farmers together in
pursuit of healthy food and healthy communities. As a
CSA, Philadelphia Community Farm offers a means to
educated and involve rural and urban families, adults and
youth, and people with special needs in ecological restora-
tion, education, and farming. PCF is also a certified home
for family foster care of adults and children. In 2005, NCF
worked with PCF to plan for a new initiative to finance
CSA farms and incorporate their local land trust of 1,500
acres in an innovative new agricultural economic

development effort.

PHOTOGRAPH BY ANGELA DAWSON



NCF Audited Financial Statements

Year ending December 31, 2005
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

ASSETS i
Temporarily
Cash $456,369 Unrestricted Restricted Total
Accounts Receivable _$133,834 Grants $437,747 $312,509 $750,256
Grants Receivable $150,000 Housing Development Fees $340,167 $ = $340,167
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $740,203 Interest Income $7,419 $ — $7,419
Unrealized Gains/Losses $4,247 $ — $4,247

Promissory Note $100,000 Book Sales, Program Fees, Other ~ $6,708 $ — $6,708
Non-current Housing Receivables $212,276 TOTAL INCOME $796,228 $312,509  $1,108,797
NCDF Stock $60,000
Total Other Assets w Project Expenses $750,615 $ — $750,615
TOTAL ASSETS $1,112,479 Change in Net Assets $45,673 $312,509 $358,182
Accounts Payable $176,417
Deferred Revenue $100,000
Loan payable to NCDF $480,000
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $756,417

. Net Assets ($2,120)
Change in Net Assets $358,182
TOTAL NET ASSETS $356,062
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS $1,112,479
2005 NCDF Loan 2005 NCDF Investment
Disbursement by Sector by Sector

Other i

s National 7% A

individuals for

g Cooperative Bank
housing
13% 10% g'l;ividuals
Cooperative
foundations/orgs

4%

Socially motivated
institutions
10%

Worker co-ops
1%




NORTHCOUNTRY COOPERATIVE FEDERAL CREDIT UNION (NCECU)

Highlights

* Completed a second full year of operations

in full compliance with NCUA regulations
* Originated over $600,000 in loans

* Directed 89% of loan dollars to economically
under-served and low-income areas or
individuals

* Increased assets by 19%

* Experienced no loan losses, maintaining a
100% repayment rate

NCFCU is one of only a handful of lenders in
the Twin Cities that specializes in cooperative
housing finance.

Purchasing Your First Co-op Share

The Clearview Cooperative in Minneapolis is Sally
Costello’s first homeownership—and coopera-
tive—experience, and it feels good. For Costello,
the move to cooperative homeownership was
serendipitous, if not her original intention. Her
interest in the space began when she saw an online
listing and liked what she saw, but she was also
intrigued by how co-ops work. “I did a little
research on co-ops to see what they were about
and see if I would fit in,” she says. “I thought

that I would, and 1 just ventured forward.”

PHOTOGRAPH BY JENNIFER FIERKE

A '
Sally Costello on the steps of the Clearview
Cooperative.

Costello contacted NCFCU, which was recom-
mended by her realtor as a good organization to
work with and one of the only organizations in
town that makes loans for cooperative shares.
Costello moved into her new home on April 26,
2005, and is already investing in her space
through remodeling. “I love it, and I absolutely
love living in a co-op,” says Costello. “I enjoy
going to any meetings that we have about
remodeling or updating, and just bumping into
neighbors in the hall—it’s a nice community.”

Sally Costello works for Rise, Inc., a nonprofit
that removes barriers to employment for
disabled and other workers.

NCFCU Financial Statements . o oecemse: 2005

BALANCE SHEET

Assets

Cash and Equivalents $785,871
Loans Receivable $2,112,331
Allowance for Loan Losses ($14,720)
Net Fixed Assets $5,839
Other Assets and Actuals $2,102
TOTAL ASSETS $2,891,423
Liabilities

Dividends Payable $19,209
CDFI Refundable Advance $37,659
TOTAL LIABILITIES $56,868
Equity

Shares—regular $530,640
Share & Non-member Certificates $2,195,425
Secondary Cap Loan $25,000
Regular Reserves $16,459
Undivided Earnings $50,898
Net Income $16,133
TOTAL EQUITY $2,834,555

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $2,891,423

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

Interest $153,268
Loan Fees $13,930
TOTAL REVENUE $167,198
Dividend Expense $42,044
GROSS PROFIT $125,154
Operating Expenses

Administration $18,000
Labor $65,802
Occupancy $2,400
Other Expenses $21,569
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE T $107,771
Income from Operations $17,383
Non-operating Income and Transfers ($1,250)
NET INCOME $16,133
Note: Audits are performed @

by members of the

credit union's Supervisory LENDER m
Committee.




. Many Thanks to ...

Investors

Thank you to those organizations and individuals who generously suppert cooperative development

by providing below-market loans to NCDE

Adrian Dominican Sisters

Ascension Health

Calvert Social Investment Foundation

Catholic Health Initiatives

Community Development Financial Institutions Fund
of the U.S. Department of the Treasury

Congregation of the Humility of Mary

Consumer Association for Cooperative Action

Cooperative Development Foundation

Co-op Disaster Relief Fund

Amy Domini as Trustee

Dominican Sisters of Springfield, lllinois

Episcopal Church

Episcopal Diocese of lowa Alternative Investment Fund

Federated Youth Foundation

Franciscan Sisters of Little Falls

Funding Exchange Endowment

Funding Exchange Pooled Funds

Group Health Association

Investment Management Accounts

Kansas Midwives Legal Defense Fund

Loring, Walcott, and Coolidge Trusts

Mé&f Community Development Corporation

MMA Community Development Investments, Inc.

Mercy investment Program, Inc.

National Community Capital Association

National Cooperative Bank Development Corporation

Northstar Asset Management

NCF/NCDF Funders

Northwest Area Foundation

Our Lady of Victory Missionary Sisters

Partners for the Common Good

School Sisters of Notre Dame

School Sisters of St. Francis

Sinsinawa Dominicans

Sisters of Charity BVM

Sisters of Charity Seton Enablement Fund

Sisters of Mercy of the Americas

Sisters of St. Deminic

Sisters of St. Joseph in California

Sisters of St. Joseph of Carondelet

Sisters of St. Francis of Philadelphia

Sisters of the Presentation BVYM

Sisters, Servants of the Immaculate Heart of Mary
Society of Mary, Province of St. Louis

SSM International Finance

Tides Foundation

Twin Cities Co-ops Federal Credit Unicn

Twin Pines Cooperative Foundation

Wells Fargo Community Development Corporation
Western Wisconsin Coalition of Co-0ops

Wheaton Franciscan Sisters Corporation
Wiscansin Episcopal Community Investment Fund
Woodlands investment Management Account

A number of individual and institutional investors
through United States Trust of Boston

Several organizations gave grants to NCI" or NCDF in 2003 1o support cooperative development,

education, training, and other special projects.

Blooming Prairie Foundation
Corporation for Enterprise Development
McKnight Foundation

Local Initiatives Support Corporation
Northwest Area Foundation
United States Department of Agriculture

NCFCU Supportive Depositors

Affinity Plus Federal Credit Union

Alternatives Federal Credit Union

Calvert Social Investment Foundation

Central Minnesota Federal Credit Union

Hiway Federal Credit Linion

Mid-states Corporate Federal Credit Union

Minneapolis Consortium of Community Developers

National Federation of Community Develepment Credit
Unions

And You!

Nonprofits Assistance Fund

Postal Credit Union

Sisters of the Living Word

Sisters of St. Dominic

SSM Internationat Finance, inc.

Twin City Co-ops Federal Credit Union
U.S. Federal Credit Union

Wings Financial Federal Credit Union

One of the best things about community investment is that anyone—[rom individuals to large insti-

lutions—can contribute! The Social Investment Forum encourages investors to direct 1% of assets 1o

community investing, Community-minded investors can participate in NCDF% mission by;

+ Donate 10 NCF's charitable work

« Encourage other co-ops to join NCDF

» Serve on the NCDFE NCF or NCFCU board or
committees

» Come 1o our training everts

= Serve as a trainer or mentor for other co-ops
= Be an investor in NCDF

* Open a personal savings account at NCFCU

* Encourage 5 other people to open accounls at

NCFCU



